
 

North Devon Council 
Brynsworthy Environment Centre 
Barnstaple 
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AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
 

A meeting of the Audit Committee will be held in the Barum Room, Brynsworthy 
Environment Centre, Barnstaple on TUESDAY 5TH SEPTEMBER 2017 AT 6.00 P.M.  
 
 

NOTE: A location plan for the Brynsworthy Environment Centre is attached to the 
agenda front pages) 
 
Please park at the front of the building.  Once parked can you please sign in the 
reception visitor book together with your vehicle registration details.  These details 
are required in case of any emergency.   

 
Members of the Committee: Councillor Flynn (Chairman) 
     Councillor Croft (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillors Bradford, Chugg, Moore, Patrinos and Roome. 
 
 

AGENDA 
  

1. Apologies for absence.   
 
2. To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 4th July 2017 

(attached). 
 
3. Items brought forward which in the opinion of the Chairman should be considered 

by the meeting as a matter of urgency. 
 
4. Declarations of Interests.  (Please complete the form provided at the meeting or 

telephone Member Services to prepare a form for your signature before the 
meeting.  Interests must be re-declared when the item is called, and Councillors 
must leave the room if necessary.) 

 
5. To agree the agenda between Part 'A' and Part 'B' (Confidential Restricted 

Information). 
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PART ‘A’ 
 

Internal  Audit Items: 
 
6. Internal Audit Report – IT Asset Management.  Report by Mazars Public Sector 

Internal Audit Limited (attached) (Pages 1 to 18). 
 
7. Internal Audit Progress Report 2017/18. Report by Mazars Public Sector 

Internal Audit Limited (attached) (Pages 19 to 28). 
 

External Audit Items: 
 

8. External Audit Findings Report. Report by Grant Thornton (attached) (Pages 29 
to 64). Head of Resources to report. 

 
9. Letter of Representation. Report by Head of Resources (attached) (Pages 65 to 

68).  
 
 

North Devon Council Items: 

 
10. Half Yearly Report of the Chair of the Audit Committee.  (attached) (Pages 69 

to 70). 
 
11. Corporate Risk Register. Report by Head of Corporate and Community Services 

(attached) (Pages 71 to 92). 
 
12. Consultation on Auditor Appointment from 2018/19.  Report by Head of 

Resources (attached) (Pages 93 to 96). 
 
 

Standing Items:  

  
13. Audit Recommendation Tracker.  Report by Head of Corporate and Community 

Services (attached) (Pages 97 to 104). 
 
14. Work Programme 2017/18. To consider the work programme (attached) (Pages 

105 to 106). 
 
 
PART 'B' (Confidential Restricted Information).  
 
Nil. 
 
 

Reminder - Members please return your agenda to the Corporate and Community 
Services Officer at the end of the meeting.  

 
 

If you have any enquiries about this agenda, please contact Corporate and 
Community Services 01271 388253 
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North Devon Council protocol on recording / filming at Council meetings 
 
The Council is committed to openness and transparency in its decision-making. 
Recording is permitted at Council meetings that are open to the public. The Council 
understands that some members of the public attending its meetings may not wish to be 
recorded. The Chairman of the meeting will make sure any request not to be recorded is 
respected.  
 
The rules that the Council will apply are:  
 
 

1. The recording must be overt (clearly visible to anyone at the meeting) and must 
not disrupt proceedings. The Council will put signs up at any meeting where we 
know recording is taking place.  

 
2. The Chairman of the meeting has absolute discretion to stop or suspend recording 

if, in their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice proceedings at the meeting 
or if the person recording is in breach of these rules.  

 
3. We will ask for recording to stop if the meeting goes into ‘part B’ where the public 

is excluded for confidentiality reasons. In such a case, the person filming should 
leave the room ensuring all recording equipment is switched off. 

 
4. Any member of the public has the right not to be recorded. We ensure that 

agendas for, and signage at, Council meetings make it clear that recording can 
take place – anyone not wishing to be recorded must advise the Chairman at the 
earliest opportunity.  

 
5. The recording should not be edited in a way that could lead to misinterpretation or 

misrepresentation of the proceedings or in a way that ridicules or shows a lack of 
respect for those in the recording. The Council would expect any recording in 
breach of these rules to be removed from public view.  

 
 
 
Notes for guidance: 
 
Please contact either our Corporate and Community Services team or our 
Communications team in advance of the meeting you wish to record at so we can make 
all the necessary arrangements for you on the day.  
 
For more information contact the Corporate and Community  Services team on 01271 
388253 or email memberservices@northdevon.gov.uk or the Communications Team 
on 01271 388278, email communications@northdevon.gov.uk. 
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North Devon Council offices at Brynsworthy, the full postal 
address is:  

North Devon Council, PO BOX 379, Barnstaple, Devon. EX32 2GR. 

For ‘Sat-Nav’ directions use EX31 3NS. 

At the Roundswell roundabout take the exit onto the B3232, after about ½ mile 
take the first right, BEC is about ½ a mile on the right. 

Drive into the site, visitors parking is in front of the main building on the left 
hand side. There should be plenty of spaces. 

On arrival at the main entrance dial 8253 for Corporate and Community 
Services.  
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Private and Confidential


Chartered Accountants


Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP.


A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.


Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and


its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. Please see grant-thornton.co.uk for further details..


Private and Confidential


This Audit Findings report highlights the key findings arising from the audit that are significant to the responsibility of those charged with governance (in the case of North 


Devon District Council, the Audit Committee), to oversee the financial reporting process, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260, the Local 


Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice. Its contents have been discussed with officers. 


As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland) ('ISA (UK&I)'), which is directed towards 


forming and expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of 


the financial statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements. 


The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed primarily for the 


purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and giving a value for money conclusion. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all 


areas of control weakness. However, where, as part of our testing, we identify any control weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be 


relied upon to disclose defalcations or other irregularities, or to include all possible improvements in internal control that a more extensive special examination might 


identify. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this 


report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.


We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the kind assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.


Yours sincerely


Elizabeth Cave


Engagement Lead


Grant Thornton UK LLP 


Hartwell House 


55 – 61 Victoria Street


Bristol


BS1 6FT


www.grant-thornton.co.uk 


5 September 2017


Dear Members of the Audit Committee


Audit Findings for North Devon District Council for the year ending 31 March 2017
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Executive summary


Purpose of this report


This report highlights the key issues affecting the results of North Devon District 


Council ('the Council') and the preparation of the Council's financial statements 


for the year ended 31 March 2017. It is also used to report our audit findings to 


management and those charged with governance in accordance with the 


requirements of ISA (UK&I) 260,  and the Local Audit and Accountability Act 


2014 ('the Act').  


Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the Code'), we 


are required to report whether, in our opinion, the Council's financial statements 


give  a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council and its income 


and expenditure for the year and whether they have been properly prepared in 


accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting. . 


We are also required to consider other information published together with the 


audited financial statements (including the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 


and Narrative Report, whether it is consistent with the financial statements, 


apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, our 


knowledge of the Council acquired in the course of performing our audit; or 


otherwise misleading.


We are required to carry out sufficient work to satisfy ourselves on whether the 


Council has made proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 


effectiveness in its use of resources ('the value for money (VFM) conclusion'). 


Auditor Guidance Note 7 (AGN07) clarifies our reporting requirements in the 


Code and the Act. We are required to provide a conclusion whether in all 


significant respects, the Council has put in place proper arrangements to secure 


value for money through economic, efficient and effective use of its resources for 


the year.


The Act also details the following additional powers and duties for  local 


government auditors, which we are required to report to you if applied:


• a public interest report if we identify any matter that comes to our attention 


in the course of the audit that in our opinion should be considered by the 


Council or brought to the public's attention (section 24 of the Act); 


• written recommendations which should be considered by the Council and 


responded to publicly (section 24 of the Act);


• application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary 


to law (section 28 of the Act);  


• issue of an advisory notice (section 29 of the Act); and


• application for judicial review (section 31 of the Act).  


We are also required to give electors the opportunity to raise questions about 


the accounts and consider and decide upon objections received in relation to 


the accounts under sections 26 and 27 of the Act. 


Introduction


In the conduct of our audit we have not had to alter or change our audit 


approach, which we communicated to you in our Audit Plan dated May 2017.


Our audit is substantially complete although we are finalising our procedures in 


the following areas: 


• final review of fieldwork as part of our quality assurance processes


• review of the final version of the financial statements


• obtaining and reviewing the management letter of representation


• review of revised versions of the Annual Governance Statement


• updating our post balance sheet events review, to the date of signing the 


opinion, and


• Whole of Government Accounts


We received draft financial statements and accompanying working papers at the 


commencement of our work, in accordance with the agreed timetable.
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Executive summary


Key audit and financial reporting issues


Financial statements opinion


We have not identified any adjustments affecting the Council's reported financial 


position. We have recommended a number of adjustments to improve the 


presentation of the financial statements.


The key messages arising from our audit of the Council's financial statements are:


• Following a significant revaluation increase in 2016/17, we identified that the 


valuation basis of the Queens Theatre in previous years was not appropriate. 


This has resulted in a Prior Period Adjustment to the 2015/16 balance sheet for 


£7.2m because it is a material amount.


• the draft accounts were produced to a good standard, with the audit being 


facilitated by good supporting working papers and excellent assistance from the 


financial services team


Further details are set out in section two of this report.


We anticipate providing a unqualified audit opinion in respect of the financial 


statements (see Appendix B).


Other financial statement responsibilities


As well as an opinion on the financial statements, we are required to give an 


opinion on whether other information published together with the audited 


financial statements is consistent with the financial statements. This includes if the 


AGS and Narrative Report is misleading or inconsistent with the information of 


which we are aware from our audit.


Based on our review of the Council’s Narrative Report and AGS we are satisfied 


that they are consistent with the audited financial statements. We are also 


satisfied that the AGS meets the requirements set out in the CIPFA/SOLACE 


guidance and that the disclosures included in the Narrative Report are in line 


with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice.


Controls


Roles and responsibilities


The Council's management is responsible for the identification, assessment, 


management and monitoring of risk, and for developing, operating and 


monitoring the system of internal control.


Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of 


control weakness.  However, where, as part of our testing, we identify any 


control weaknesses, we report these to the Council. 


Findings


We draw your attention to control issues identified from our review of the 


Council's IT environment which identified some deficiencies around the 


absence of an up to date IT Security Policy and the lack of review of change 


management processes.


Further details are provided within section two of this report.
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Executive summary


Value for Money


Based on our review, we are satisfied that, in all significant respects, the Council 


had proper arrangements in place to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness 


in its use of resources.


Further detail of our work on Value for Money are set out in section three of this 


report.


Other statutory powers and duties


We have not identified any issues that have required us to apply our statutory 


powers and duties under the Act.


Further details of our work on other statutory powers and duties is set out in 


section four of this report.


Grant certification


In addition to our responsibilities under the Code, we are required to 


certify the Council's Housing Benefit subsidy claim on behalf of the 


Department for Work and Pensions. At present our work on this claim is 


in progress and is not due to be finalised until 30 November 2017. We will 


report the outcome of this certification work through a separate report to 


the Audit Committee, which is due in January 2018.


The way forward


Matters arising from the financial statements audit and our review of the 


Council's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness 


in its use of resources have been discussed with the Head of Resources.


We have made a number of recommendations, which are set out in the 


action plan at Appendix A. Recommendations have been discussed and 


agreed with the Head of Resources and the finance team.


Acknowledgement


We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the 


assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.


Grant Thornton UK LLP


September 2017
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Audit findings


In performing our audit, we apply the concept of materiality, following the requirements of ISA (UK&I) 320: Materiality in planning and performing an audit. The standard 


states that 'misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 


decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements'. 


As we reported in our audit plan, we determined overall materiality to be £1,000k (being 1.91% of gross revenue expenditure). We have considered whether this level 


remained appropriate during the course of the audit and have made no changes to our overall materiality.


We also set an amount below which misstatements would be clearly trivial and would not need to be accumulated or reported to those charged with governance because we 


would not expect that the accumulated effect of such amounts would have a material impact on the financial statements. We have defined the amount below which 


misstatements would be clearly trivial to be £50k. This remains the same as reported in our audit plan.


As we reported in our audit plan, we identified the following items where we decided that separate materiality levels were appropriate. These remain the same as reported in 


our audit plan.


Balance/transaction/disclosure Explanation Materiality level


Disclosures of officers' remuneration, salary 


bandings and exit packages in notes to the 


statements


Due to public interest in these disclosures and the statutory requirement for 


them to be made.


£10,000


Disclosure of auditors' remuneration in notes to the 


statements


Due to public interest in these disclosures and the statutory requirement for 


them to be made.


£10,000


Materiality


Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 


taken on the basis of the financial statements; Judgments about materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances, and are affected by the size or nature of a misstatement, 


or a combination of both; and Judgments about matters that are material to users of the financial statements are based on a consideration of the common financial information needs 


of users as a group. The possible effect of misstatements on specific individual users, whose needs may vary widely, is not considered. (ISA (UK&I) 320)
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Audit findings against significant risks


Risks identified in our audit plan Work completed Assurance gained and issues arising


The revenue cycle includes fraudulent transactions


Under ISA (UK&I) 240 there is a presumed risk that 


revenue may be misstated due to the improper 


recognition of revenue. 


This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor 


concludes that there is no risk of material misstatement 


due to fraud relating to revenue recognition.


Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of 


the revenue streams at North Devon District Council, we have 


determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue recognition can 


be rebutted, because:


• there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition;


• opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited; and


• the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including


North Devon District Council, mean that all forms of fraud are seen 


as unacceptable.


Our audit work has not identified any issues 


in respect of revenue recognition.


Management over-ride of controls


Under ISA (UK&I) 240 it is presumed  that the risk of  


management  over-ride of controls is present in all 


entities.


We have carried out the following work:


• review of entity controls


• review of journal entry process and selection of unusual journal 


entries for testing back to supporting documentation


• review of accounting estimates, judgements and decisions made by 


management


• review of unusual significant transactions.


Our audit work has not identified any 


evidence of management over-ride of 


controls. In particular the findings of our 


review of journal controls and testing of 


journal controls and testing of journal entries 


has not identified any significant issues. 


We set out later in this section of the report 


our work and findings on key accounting 


estimates and judgements. 


Audit findings


In this section we detail our response to the significant risks of material misstatement which we identified in the Audit Plan.  As we noted in our plan, there are two 


presumed significant risks which are applicable to all audits under auditing standards.


"Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, due to either size or nature, 


and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for which there is significant measurement uncertainty." (ISA (UK&I) 


315) . In making the review of unusual significant transactions "the auditor shall treat identified significant related party transactions outside the entity's normal course of business as 


giving rise to significant risks." (ISA (UK&I) 550)
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Audit findings against significant risks continued
Risks identified in our 


audit plan Work completed Assurance gained and issues arising


Valuation of property, 


plant and equipment


The Council revalues its 


assets on a rolling basis over 


a five year period. The Code 


requires that the Council 


ensures that  the carrying 


value at the balance sheet 


date is not materially 


different from the current 


value. This represents a 


significant estimate by 


management in the financial 


statements.


 Review of management's processes and assumptions for the 


calculation of the estimate.


 Review of the competence, expertise and objectivity of any 


management experts used.


 Review of the instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope 


of their work


 Discussions with the Council's valuer about the basis on which the 


valuation was carried out, challenging the key assumptions.


 Review and challenge of the information used by the valuer to 


ensure it was robust and consistent with our understanding.


 Testing of revaluations made during the year to ensure they were 


input correctly into the Council's asset register


 Evaluation of the assumptions made by management for those 


assets not revalued during the year and how management satisfied 


themselves that these  were not materially different to current value.


Our audit work has identified the following issues:


• The Queens Theatre was revalued for 2016/17 and a change 


in the basis of valuation led to a significant increase in 


valuation (£7.2m). We were satisfied that the valuation for 


2016/17 was reasonable but concluded that the basis of 


valuation in previous years was incorrect. See page 19.


• Valuations are still being carried out as at 1 April instead of the 


balance sheet date of 31 March so even the most recent are a 


year out of date. PPE should be valued at the latest practical 


date for the financial year i.e. 31 December or later.


Valuation of pension fund 


net liability


The Council's pension fund 


net liability, as reflected in its 


balance sheet ,represents a 


significant estimate in the 


financial statements.


We have undertaken the following work in relation to this risk:


 Identifying the controls put in place by management to ensure that 


the pension fund net liability is not materially misstated and 


assessing whether those controls were implemented as expected 


and whether they were sufficient to mitigate the risk of material 


misstatement.


 Review of the competence, expertise and objectivity of the actuary 


who carried out the Council's pension fund valuation. 


 Gaining an understanding of the basis on which the IAS 19 


valuation was carried out, undertaking procedures to confirm the 


reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made. 


 Review of the consistency of the pension fund net liability 


disclosures in notes to the financial statements with the actuarial 


report from your actuary.


 Carried out additional work to gain assurance over the discount rate 


used by the actuary which was outside of the range expected by the 


auditor’s expert’s review of the actuary (Barnet Waddingham).


We considered the reasons for the increase in the pensions 


defined benefits liability in view of the assumptions used by the 


actuary, Barnet Waddingham, and the explanation provided in the 


notes to the accounts. Overall we concluded that the impact on 


the liability was within the reasonable bounds of estimation. 


Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in relation 


to the risk identified.


Audit findings
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Audit findings against other risks


Transaction 


cycle Description of risk Work completed


Assurance gained & issues 


arising


Operating


expenses


Non-pay expenditure represents a 


significant percentage of the Council’s 


gross expenditure. Management uses 


judgement to estimate accruals of un-


invoiced non-pay costs. 


We identified the completeness of non-


pay expenditure in the financial 


statements as a risk requiring 


particular audit attention: 


• Creditors understated or not 


recorded in the correct period 


(Operating expenses understated)


We have undertaken the following work in relation to this risk:


 documented our understanding of processes and key controls over the transaction 


cycle


 undertaken walkthrough of the key controls to assess the whether those controls 


were in line with our documented understanding


 review of creditors / liability balances for unusual amounts, including testing of 


accruals and review of estimation techniques.


 review control account reconciliations covering the agreement of creditor payments 


to the ledger.


 Testing for unrecorded liabilities and after date payments to ensure all liabilities 


identified by obtaining a list of non-pay related payments for April and May 2017, 


selecting a sample and agreeing to supporting documentation to confirm the items 


have been recorded in the correct period.


Our audit work has not 


identified any significant issues 


in relation to the risk identified.


Employee 


remuneration


Payroll expenditure represents a 


significant percentage of the Council’s 


gross expenditure.


We identified the completeness of 


payroll expenditure in the financial 


statements as a risk requiring 


particular audit attention: 


• Employee remuneration accruals 


understated (Remuneration 


expenses not correct)


We have undertaken the following work in relation to this risk:


 documented our understanding of processes and key controls over the transaction 


cycle


 undertaken walkthrough of the key controls to assess the whether those controls 


were in line with our documented understanding


 Analytical review of trend analysis of employee remuneration throughout the year 


and an analysis of employee remuneration expenditure to ensure all expected 


payroll runs have been included


 Review of the year end payroll reconciliation to ensure that information from the 


payroll system can be agreed to the ledger and the financial statements.


Our audit work has not 


identified any significant issues 


in relation to the risk identified.


Audit findings


In this section we detail our response to the other risks of material misstatement which we identified in the Audit Plan.  Recommendations, together with management 


responses are attached at appendix A.


"In respect of some risks, the auditor may judge that it is not possible or practicable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence only from substantive procedures. Such risks may 


relate to the inaccurate or incomplete recording of routine and significant classes of transactions or account balances, the characteristics of which often permit highly automated 


processing with little or no manual intervention. In such cases, the entity’s controls over such risks are relevant to the audit and the auditor shall obtain an understanding of them." 


(ISA (UK&I) 315) 
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Audit findings against other risks continued


Transaction cycle Description of risk Work completed Assurance gained & issues arising


Changes to the 


presentation of local


authority financial 


statements


CIPFA has been working on the 


‘Telling the Story’ project, for which 


the aim was to streamline the 


financial statements and improve 


accessibility to the user and this has 


resulted in changes to the 2016/17 


CIPFA Code of Practice.


The changes affect the presentation 


of income and expenditure in the 


financial statements and associated 


disclosure notes. A prior period 


adjustment (PPA) to restate the 


2015/16 comparative figures is also 


required.


We have undertaken the following work in relation to this risk:


 documented and evaluated the process for the recording the required 


financial reporting changes to the 2016/17 financial statements


 reviewed the re-classification of the Comprehensive Income and 


Expenditure Statement (CIES) comparatives to ensure that they are 


in line with the Council’s internal reporting structure


 reviewed the appropriateness of the revised grouping of entries within 


the Movement In Reserves Statement (MIRS)


 tested the classification of income and expenditure for 2016/17 


recorded within the Cost of Services section of the CIES


 tested the completeness  of income and expenditure by reviewing the 


reconciliation of the CIES to the general ledger


 tested the classification of income and expenditure reported within the 


new Expenditure and Funding Analysis (EFA) note to the financial 


statements


 reviewed the new segmental reporting disclosures within the 2016/17 


financial statements  to ensure compliance with the CIPFA Code of 


Practice.


Our audit work has not identified any 


significant issues in relation to the risk 


identified.


Audit findings


Going concern


As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption in the 


preparation and presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern” 


(ISA (UK&I) 570). 


We reviewed the management's assessment of the going concern assumption and the disclosures in the financial statements and concluded that they were appropriate.
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Accounting policies, estimates and judgements


Accounting area Summary of policy Comments Assessment


Revenue recognition  Activity is accounted for in the year it takes place, not 


simply when cash payments are made or received


 Revenue from the provision of services is recognised 


when the Council can reliably measure the percentage 


of completion of the transaction ownership and it is 


probable that the economic benefits or service potential 


associated with the transaction will flow to the Council.


 Revenue from council tax and business rates are 


measured at the full amount receivable (net of any 


impairment losses) as they are non-contractual, non-


exchange transactions and there can be no difference 


between the delivery and the payment dates.


We have reviewed the Council's recognition of revenue policies 


and are satisfied that:


• Appropriate policies have been used


• Accounting policies have been adequately disclosed


• Revenue had been appropriately recognised





Green


Judgements and estimates  Key estimates and judgements include:


 Useful life of PPE


 Revaluations


 Impairments


 Accruals 


 Valuation of pension fund  net liability


 Provision for NNDR appeals


 Other provisions


We have reviewed the accounting areas where the Council has 


exercised judgement and used estimates. We found that:


• The Queens Theatre was revalued for 2016/17 and a 


change in the basis of valuation led to a significant increase 


in valuation (£7.2m). We were satisfied that the valuation for 


2016/17 was reasonable but concluded that the basis of 


valuation in previous years was incorrect as it valued the 


Theatre based on the capitalisation of rental income being 


received. The Theatre should have been valued on a 


Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC) basis as was run at a 


net cost to the Council annually.


• While the RICS guidance states that the income 


capitalisation approach may be used, it also states that DRC 


may be used to cross-check whether the return on capital is 


realistic.  Our view is that the income capitalisation approach 


did not produce a realistic valuation compared to DRC. A 


Prior Period Adjustment (PPA) is required to correct the 


2015/16 position. See page 19.





Red


Assessment


 Marginal accounting policy which could potentially attract attention from regulators  Accounting policy appropriate but scope for improved disclosure  Accounting policy appropriate and disclosures sufficient


Audit findings


In this section we report on our consideration of accounting policies, in particular revenue recognition policies,  and key estimates and judgements made and included 


with the Council's financial statements.  
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Accounting policies, estimates and judgements continued


Accounting area Summary of policy Comments Assessment


Going concern The Head of Resources, s151 officer, has a 


reasonable expectation that the services


provided by the Council will continue for the 


foreseeable future.  Members concur with this 


view. For this reason, the Council continue to 


adopt the going concern basis in preparing


the financial statements.


We have reviewed the Council's assessment and are satisfied with 


management's assessment that the going concern basis is 


appropriate for the 2016/17 financial statements.





Green


Other accounting policies We have reviewed the Council's policies against the requirements of 


the CIPFA Code of Practice. The Council's accounting policies are 


appropriate and consistent with previous years.





Green


Assessment


 Marginal accounting policy which could potentially attract attention from regulators  Accounting policy appropriate but scope for improved disclosure  Accounting policy appropriate and disclosures sufficient


Audit findings


.  
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Other communication requirements


Issue Commentary


1. Matters in relation to fraud  We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Audit Committee.  We have not been made aware of any incidents in the


period and no other issues have been identified during the course of our audit procedures.


2. Matters in relation to related 


parties


 From the work we carried out, we have not identified any related party transactions which have not been disclosed.


3. Matters in relation to laws and 


regulations


 You have not made us aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations and we have not 


identified any incidences from our audit work.


4. Written representations  A standard letter of representation has been requested from the Council, which is included in the Audit Committee papers. 


5. Confirmation requests from 


third parties 


 We requested from management permission to send confirmation requests to the Council's bankers and institutions where the 


Council has funds invested  This permission was granted and the requests were sent.  All of these requests were returned with 


positive confirmation.


6. Disclosures  Our review found no material omissions in the financial statements.


Audit findings


We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by auditing standards and the Code to communicate to those charged with governance.
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Other communication requirements continued


Issue Commentary


7. Matters on which we report by 


exception


 We are required to report on a number of matters by exception in a number of areas:


We have not identified  any issues we would be required to report by exception in the following areas


 If the Annual Governance Statement does not meet the disclosure requirements set out in the CIPFA/SOLACE guidance or is 


misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit


 The information in the Narrative Report is materially inconsistent with the information in the audited financial statements or our 


knowledge of the Council acquired in the course of performing our audit, or otherwise misleading.


8. Specified procedures for 


Whole of Government 


Accounts 


We are not required to carry out specified procedures (on behalf of the NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) consolidation 


pack under WGA group audit instructions as the Council is below the £350m threshold.


Audit findings
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Internal controls
Assessment Issue and risk Recommendations


1.



Amber


Absence of an up to date IT security policy


The existing IT Security Policy has not been updated since 2012 and is 


currently being updated.  The policy currently available to staff through 


the intranet is therefore unlikely to be reflective of the current IT 


security environment in place. This is particularly important in times of 


change and relocation of Council facilities and staff. 


This condition poses the following risk to the organisation:


• Without an up to date and comprehensive IT Security Policy (and 


associated policies) in place which has been approved by senior 


management there is a risk that a culture of information security 


awareness will not be effectively embedded within the Council. 


The IT Security Policy should be updated and approved by the relevant 


management body within the Council. A process to review the IT Security Policy 


on a periodic basis should also be adhered to. 


The roll-out of the new policy should be supported by appropriate processes to 


ensure that staff are aware of both the contents of the Policy and their 


obligations which are contained within it.


We recommend that this process includes staff being required to sign to agree to 


the Security Policy (and associated policies) on an annual basis or at least on 


their reissue.


2.



Amber


Lack of review of change and patch management processes


We have been provided with a draft patch management policy (v1.3) 


which is dated 2011. There is no evidence that this has been reviewed 


or issued since the previous version was finalised. Also, the change 


management procedures are embedded in the service desk processes 


and do not have an associated policy document.  


This condition poses the following risk to the organisation:


Without documented change and patch management processes there 


is a risk that change and patch management may not be effectively 


administered, leading to loss of data integrity, processing integrity 


and/or system down-time.


Documented policies and procedures addressing change management 


processes and related control requirements (such as change testing, approvals, 


and documentation requirements) should be established, formally approved by 


the appropriate members of the organisation, and communicated to relevant 


personnel responsible for implementing them and/or abiding by them. The 


policies should be subject to a regular review and update process.


Audit findings


Assessment


 Significant deficiency – risk of significant misstatement


 Deficiency – risk of inconsequential misstatement


The matters reported here are limited to those deficiencies that we have identified during the course of our audit and that we have concluded are of sufficient 


importance to merit being reported to you in accordance with auditing standards.


"The purpose of an audit is for the auditor to express an opinion on the financial statements. 


Our audit included consideration of internal control relevant to the preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 


purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control. 


The matters being reported are limited to those deficiencies that the auditor has identified during the audit and that the auditor has concluded are of sufficient importance to merit being reported to those 


charged with governance." (ISA (UK&I) 265) 
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Adjusted misstatements


Audit findings


Detail Comprehensive Income 


and Expenditure 


Statement


£'000


Balance Sheet


£'000


Impact on total net


expenditure


£000


1 The Queens Theatre was revalued in 2016/17 and a change in 


the basis of valuation led to a significant increase in valuation 


(£7.2m). We were satisfied that the valuation for 2016/17 was 


reasonable but concluded that the basis of valuation in 


previous years was incorrect as it valued the Theatre based on 


capitalisation of the rental income being received. The 


Theatre should have been valued on a Depreciated 


Replacement Cost (DRC) basis as it was run at a net cost to 


the Council annually. A Prior Period Adjustment (PPA) is 


required to correct the 2015/16 position.


Nil £7.2m - 2015/16


(£7.2m) – 2015/16


Nil


Overall impact £Nil £Nil £Nil


A number of adjustments to the draft accounts have been identified during the audit process. We are required to report all non trivial misstatements to those charged 


with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management. The table below summarises the adjustments arising from the audit which have 


been processed by management.


Impact of adjusted misstatements


All adjusted misstatements are set out in detail below along with the impact on the key statements and the reported net expenditure for the year. 







© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for  North Devon District Council  |  2016/17 20


Misclassifications and disclosure changes


Audit findings


Adjustment type Value


£'000


Account balance Impact on the financial statements


1 Disclosure - Note 16 – PPE 


revaluations


The property, plant and equipment revaluations table within Note 16 


contained incorrect data as, it appeared to show that vehicles, plant & 


equipment, infrastructure assets and community assets were being 


revalued at fair value on an ongoing basis. The table has now been 


amended to remove categories of assets which are valued at historic 


cost. 


2 Disclosure 67 Note 36 – External


Audit Fees


The note did not include the fee for the other non-audit services work 


(Investors in People reaccreditation) of £10k. 


3 Disclosure - General A small number of amendments have been made to the draft accounts 


to correct minor disclosure and presentational issues that do not 


warrant being individually reported to Those Charged with 


Governance.


The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements. 
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Value for Money


Risk assessment 


We carried out an initial risk assessment in March 2017 and identified a number 
of significant risks in respect of specific areas of proper arrangements using the 
guidance contained in AGN03. We communicated these risks to you in our 
Audit Plan dated May 2017. 


We have continued our review of relevant documents up to the date of giving 
our report, and have not identified any further significant risks where we need 
to perform further work.


We carried out further work only in respect of the significant risks we identified 
from our initial and ongoing risk assessment. Where our consideration of the 
significant risks determined that arrangements were not operating effectively, we 
have used the examples of proper arrangements from AGN 03 to explain the 
gaps in proper arrangements that we have reported in our VFM conclusion.


Background


We are required by section 21 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 
('the Act') and the NAO Code of Audit Practice ('the Code') to satisfy 
ourselves that the Council has put in place proper arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. This is known as 
the Value for Money (VFM) conclusion. 


We are required to carry out sufficient work to satisfy ourselves that proper 
arrangements are in place at the Council. The Act and NAO guidance state 
that for local government bodies, auditors are required to give a conclusion on 
whether the Council has put proper arrangements in place. 


In carrying out this work, we are required to follow the NAO's Auditor 
Guidance Note 3 (AGN 03) issued in November 2016. AGN 03 identifies 
one single criterion for auditors to evaluate: 


In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys 
resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. 


AGN03 provides examples of proper arrangements against three sub-criteria 
but specifically states that these are not separate criteria for assessment 
purposes and that auditors are not required to reach a distinct judgement 
against each of these. 
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Significant qualitative aspects


AGN 03 requires us to disclose our views on significant qualitative aspects of the 


Council's arrangements for delivering economy, efficiency and effectiveness.


We have focused our work on the significant risks that we identified in the Council's 


arrangements. In arriving at our conclusion, our main consideration was:


• How reasonable were the assumptions made by the Council in its Medium Term 


Financial Strategy


We have set out more detail on the risks we identified, the results of the work we 


performed and the conclusions we drew from this work on page 24.


Overall conclusion


Based on the work we performed to address the significant risks, we concluded that:


• the Council had proper arrangements in all significant respects to ensure it 


delivered value for money in its use of resources. 


The text of our report, which confirms this can be found at Appendix B.


Recommendations for improvement


We discussed findings arising from our work with management and have 
agreed a recommendation for improvement as follows.


• The Council needs to develop savings plans to bridge the budget gaps 
totalling £555k in the 2018/19 to 2020/21 years.


• Management's response to these can be found in the Action Plan at 
Appendix A.


Value for Money
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Key findings


We set out below our key findings against the significant risks we identified through our initial risk assessment and further risks identified through our ongoing review of 


documents. 


Significant risk Work to address Findings and conclusions


Medium term financial planning


Like all public sector bodies, the Council is 


facing financial pressures with cuts in 


central funding . There is a risk that, without 


careful financial planning, resources will be 


insufficient to fund the Council's activities in 


the medium term.


. 


We reviewed the Council's latest Medium Term 


Financial Strategy (MTFS) and the 2017/18 


budget, considering the assumptions that 


underpin the figures within them including the 


revised arrangements for New Homes Bonus.


The 2017/18 Budget and latest MTFS 2017-2021 were considered by the Executive 


on 6/2/17 and approved by Council on 22/2/17. The MTFS was updated for all of the 


latest information at this time and is based the four year settlement from DCLFG 


and the 2017/18 budget which is then rolled forward based on a number of 


assumptions. The MTFS runs through to 2020/21, showing a cumulative budget gap 


of £138k in 18/19, £317k in 19/20 and £555k in 20/21. This is dependent on the 


achievement of savings, including the changes to garden waste and recycling 


services, continued vigorous vacancy management and reviews of the Council 


structure and reviewing external grants and services provided through external 


partners. The other assumptions in the plan: business rates retention, grant funding 


levels, council tax income have been considered and appear reasonable. The New 


Homes Bonus assumptions are in line with the revised arrangements. The MTFS 


already identifies potential schemes to bridge the gap but has not included them at 


this time as they are subject to further assessment and Council approval.


We are satisfied that the Council has proper arrangements in place for medium term 


financial planning. The Council needs to develop firm savings plans to bridge the 


budget gaps totalling £555k in the 2018/19 to 2020/21 years.


Value for Money
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Value for money


Significant difficulties in undertaking our work


We did not identify any significant difficulties in undertaking our work on your 


arrangements which we wish to draw to your attention.


Significant matters discussed with management


There were no matters where no other evidence was available or matters of such 


significance to our conclusion or that we required written representation from 


management or those charged with governance. 


Any other matters


There were no other matters from our work which were significant to our 


consideration of your arrangements to secure value for money in your use of 


resources.
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We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and provision of non-audit services.


Independence and ethics


 Ethical Standards and ISA (UK&I) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of 


matters relating to our independence. 


 We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our 


independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We 


have complied with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards and confirm that 


we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial 


statements.


• We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the 


requirements of the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards.


• For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP 


teams providing services to the Council. The table below summarises all other services 


which were identified.


Fees for other services


Service Fees £


Audit related services:


• None Nil


Non-audit services:


• Investors in People reaccreditation £10,350


Fees, non audit services and independence


Fees


Proposed fee  


£


Final fee  


£


Council audit 47,401 47,401


Grant certification 13,213 13,213*


Total audit fees (excluding VAT) 60,614 60,614


Grant certification


Our fees for grant certification cover only housing benefit subsidy 


certification, which falls under the remit of Public Sector Audit 


Appointments Limited. Fees in respect of other grant work, such as 


reasonable assurance reports, are shown under 'Fees for other 


services'.


* Indicative fee as work is still in progress


The proposed fees for the year were in line with the scale fee set by 


Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA)
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Independence and other services


We have considered whether other services might be perceived as a threat to our independence as the Council’s auditor and have ensured that appropriate safeguards are 


put in place


The above non-audit services are consistent with the Council's policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditor


Fees, non audit services and independence


Service provided to Fees Threat? Safeguard


Non-audit services


Investors in People (IIP) 


reaccreditation


North Devon District Council £10,350  Yes Level of fee is not a significant threat in 


comparison to the overall fee of £47,401. There is 


no contingent element to the fee and the work is 


carried out by staff not connected with the main 


audit.


TOTAL £10,350
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Communication to those charged with governance


Our communication plan


Audit 


Plan


Audit 


Findings


Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those charged 


with governance





Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit. Form, timing 


and expected general content of communications





Views about the qualitative aspects  of the entity's accounting and 


financial reporting practices, significant matters and issues arising 


during the audit and written representations that have been sought





Confirmation of independence and objectivity  


A statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 


regarding independence,  relationships and other matters which might  


be thought to bear on independence. 


Details of non-audit work performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and 


network firms, together with  fees charged 


Details of safeguards applied to threats to independence


 


Material weaknesses in internal control identified during the audit 


Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or others 


which results in material misstatement of the financial statements





Non compliance with laws and regulations 


Expected modifications to auditor's report, or emphasis of matter 


Unadjusted misstatements and material disclosure omissions 


Significant matters arising in connection with related parties 


Significant matters in relation to going concern  


ISA (UK&I) 260, as well as other ISAs, prescribe matters which we are required to 


communicate with those charged with governance, and which we set out in the table 


opposite.  


This document, The Audit Findings, outlines those key issues and other matters 


arising from the audit, which we consider should be communicated in writing rather 


than orally, together with an explanation as to how these have been resolved. 


Respective responsibilities


The Audit Findings Report has been prepared in the context of the Statement of 


Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by Public Sector Audit 


Appointments Limited (http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-


appointment/)


We have been appointed as the Council's independent external auditors by the Audit 


Commission, the body responsible for appointing external auditors to local public 


bodies in England at the time of our appointment. As external auditors, we have a 


broad remit covering finance and governance matters. 


Our annual work programme is set in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice 


('the Code') issued by the NAO (https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-


code/). Our work considers the Council's key risks when reaching our conclusions 


under the Code. 


It is the responsibility of the Council to ensure that proper arrangements are in place 


for the conduct of its business, and that public money is safeguarded and properly 


accounted for.  We have considered how the Council is fulfilling these 


responsibilities.


Communication of audit matters



http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/

https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
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A. Action plan


Rec no. Recommendation Priority Management response


Implementation date and 


responsibility


1. The Council needs to develop firm savings plans to 


bridge the budget gaps totalling £555k in the 2018/19 


to 2020/21 years.


Medium The Council has already identified future potential options to bridge 


the budget gap; these had prudently not been included within the 


current Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) as they are subject 


to further assessment and committee approval.  Further work on these 


options will be carried out to bring them forwards and for inclusion in 


the refreshed MTFS that will be part of the 2018-19 Budget report to 


members in February 2018


Head of Resources 


(February 2018)


2. The Council must review its arrangements to ensure 
that issues like the Queens Theatre prior year 
valuation basis in do not happen again. The meetings 
between Financial Services and the Valuer, where 
there is discussion and challenge of the Valuation 
Report, should include a comparative review of 
similar assets.


Medium The Accountancy Manager and valuers do meet and engage 


throughout the valuation process and do go through each and review / 


challenge appropriately.   The valuers review classes of the same 


assets and  the prior period adjustment has come about from a 


difference in the valuers opinion on how the previous year’s valuation 


(15-16) was shown compared against accounting opinion on how the 


valuation should be shown.  We will build the learning process from 


this year’s valuation exercise into next year’s closedown.


Accountancy Manager


(March 2018)


3. The Council’s should revalue its assets at the latest 
practical date for the financial year, i.e. 31 December 
or later, rather than 1 April.


Medium The Council have always valued its assets at 1 April and carry out a 


review to confirm no material change at 31 March.  The 31 March year 


end review would still need to be carried out whichever valuation date 


through the previous year we opted for.  The move to early closedown 


each year and specially for 2017/18 closedown means that we are 


asking for processes such as valuations to be carried out much earlier 


than before; for 2017/18 this is starting in the autumn; so the detailed 


work is complete and ‘reviewed at 31 March’ as above.  A balance is 


therefore required between closing the accounts earlier and the 


valuation date.  We will discuss this further with the valuers to 


determine if there are any tangible benefits of altering the valuation 


date from 1 April (with a review at 31 March) to a later valuation date 


(with a review at 31 March).


Accountancy Manager


(October 2017)
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A. Action plan


Rec no. Recommendation Priority Management response


Implementation date and 


responsibility


4. The IT Security Policy should be updated and 
approved by the relevant management body within 
the Council. A process to review the IT Security 
Policy on a periodic basis should also be adhered to. 
The roll-out of the new policy should be supported by 
appropriate processes to ensure that staff are aware 
of both the contents of the Policy and their obligations 
which are contained within it.
We recommend that this process includes staff being 
required to sign to agree to the Security Policy (and 
associated policies) on an annual basis or at least on 
their reissue.


Medium Our Information Security and Standards Policy was updated in April 


2016 and approved by our Workforce Matters Group and SMT. This 


Policy was communicated to all staff through 2016/17. This Policy is 


required to be signed by all new Starters to the Council and we are in 


the process of amending our Starters and Leavers process to 


incorporate ‘movers’ and if required they will be asked to sign this 


Security Policy again.


ICT Manager


(September 2017)


5. Documented policies and procedures addressing 
change management processes and related control 
requirements (such as change testing, approvals, 
and documentation requirements) should be 
established, formally approved by the appropriate 
members of the organisation, and communicated to 
relevant personnel responsible for implementing 
them and/or abiding by them. The policies should be 
subject to a regular review and update process.


Medium We commissioned an Internal Audit on Cyber Security as we have 


identified this is one of our organisations highest risks. They 


recommended the following: The Council should ensure that the 


“Patch Management Policy” is updated and that it defines the process 


and responsibilities to help ensure that systems are maintained and 


kept up to date with the right patches to help protect the network from 


known vulnerabilities. This should include a rolling schedule of 


updates ensuring critical patches are tested and deployed no more 


than 14 days following release. 


Management were in total agreement with this recommendation and 


plan to implement a revision to the patching regime with immediate 


effect and incorporate this into our Patch Management Policy by 


September 2017


ICT Manager


(September 2017)
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B: Audit opinion


We anticipate we will provide the Council with an unmodified audit report


INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NORTH DEVON 


DISTRICT COUNCIL


We have audited the financial statements of North Devon District Council (the "Authority") for the year 


ended 31 March 2017 under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the "Act"). The financial 


statements comprise the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, Movement in Reserves 


Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement, the Collection Fund and the related notes. The 


financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the 


CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17.


This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Act 


and as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published 


by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state 


to the Authority’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no 


other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone 


other than the Authority and the Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for 


the opinions we have formed.


Respective responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer and auditor


As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities, the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for 


the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance with 


proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 


United Kingdom 2016/17, which give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an 


opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law, the Code of Audit Practice published 


by the National Audit Office on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General (the “Code of Audit 


Practice”) and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply 


with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.


Scope of the audit of the financial statements


An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient 


to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether 


caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to 


the Authority’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the 


reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Chief Financial Officer; and the overall 


presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information 


in the Narrative Report, and the Annual Governance Statement to identify material inconsistencies with the 


audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, 


or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we 


become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for 


our report.


Opinion on financial statements


In our opinion:


• the financial statements present a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 


March 2017 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; and


• the financial statements have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 


Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17 and applicable law.


Opinion on other matters


In our opinion, the other information published together with the audited financial statements in the 


Narrative Report, and the Annual Governance Statement and the Annual Report for the financial year for 


which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the audited financial statements.


Appendices
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception


We are required to report to you if:


• in our opinion the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with the guidance included in 


‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016)’ published by CIPFA and 


SOLACE; or


• we have reported a matter in the public interest under section 24 of the Act in the course of, or at the 


conclusion of the audit; or


• we have made a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Act in the course of, 


or at the conclusion of the audit; or


• we have exercised any other special powers of the auditor under the Act.


We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters


Conclusion on the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its 


use of resources


Respective responsibilities of the Authority and auditor


The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 


effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly 


the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.


We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Act to be satisfied that the Authority has made proper 


arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required 


to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority's arrangements for securing 


economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.


Scope of the review of the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 


effectiveness in its use of resources


We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the 


guidance on the specified criteria issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in November 2016, as to 


whether the Authority had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed 


resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and 


Auditor General determined this criteria as that necessary for us to consider under the Code of Audit 


Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the Authority put in place proper arrangements for securing 


economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2017.


We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we 


undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a view on whether in all significant respects the 


Authority has put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use 


of resources.


Conclusion 


On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criteria issued by the Comptroller 


and Auditor General in November 2016, we are satisfied that in all significant respects the Authority put in 


place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the 


year ended 31 March 2017.


Certificate


We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of the Authority in accordance with 


the requirements of the Act and the Code of Audit Practice.


Elizabeth Cave 


for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Appointed Auditor


Grant Thornton


Hartwell House


55-61 Victoria Street


Bristol


BS1 6FT
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North Devon Council Audit Committee 


Date:  September 2017 


Half Yearly Report of the Chair of Audit Committee 


The Audit Committee resolved in May 2014 that the Chair would report half yearly to Council in March 
and September to highlight key issues that have arisen in the previous period. 


The last report was in March 2017 and since then the Committee has met on two occasions on the 9th 
May and 4th July.   


Internal and External Auditors 


A number of reports have been received updating the Committee on the progress of the External and 
Internal Audit plans.   


The External Audit Plan 2016/17 was presented at the May meeting along with the External Audit 
Progress Report and Update year end 31st March 2017.  It was positive that the action plan contained no 
recommendations.  The Head of Resources advised that all Council assets were reviewed on a rolling five 
year programme to ensure that the  assets were held appropriately within the statement of accounts. 
The Committee were advised that the current value of assets held was £70m. 


The External Audit Fee letter 2017/18 was received at the May meeting and was noted by the 
Committee. 


Update on Business Continuity 


In May the Community Protection Manager advised the Committee that business impact assessments 
had been completed for each service.  These would be tested following the completion of the ICT 
recovery plan. 


Audit Tracker 


The Committee has been pro-active in ensuring that audit recommendations are complied with.  In this 
regard, senior officers have been, and will continue to be, invited to attend the Committee to provide 
explanations as to why any recommendations have not been met or to provide progress reports.   


Statement of Accounts 2016/17 


The July meeting dealt with the Statement of Accounts 2016/17.  The Committee were advised that next 
year the Accounts would be produced by 31st May 2018. 


The Committee recommended that the draft Statement of Accounts 2016/17 be approved by Council. 


Governance 


The Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 was presented to the Committee in July.    







The Head of Corporate and Community Services confirmed that the outcome of the LGA Peer Review 
had been positive.   He also drew the Committee’s attention to the changes to the CIPFA framework as 
per the report. 


The Committee recommended that the Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 proceed to Council for 
adoption to accompany the Statement of Accounts 2017/18. 








This is a formal communication to the chief executive and chief 
finance officer of North Devon District Council to consult on the 
auditor appointment from 2018/19 


I am writing to consult you on the appointment of Grant Thornton (UK) LLP to audit 
the accounts of North Devon District Council for five years from 2018/19. The 
appointment will start on 1 April 2018. 


Background  
For audits of the accounts from 2018/19, PSAA is responsible for appointing an 
auditor to principal local government and police bodies that have chosen to opt into 
its national auditor appointment arrangements. More information on the appointing 
person scheme is available on our website. 


About the proposed appointment 
PSAA must, under regulation 13 of the Regulations, appoint an external auditor to 
each opted-in authority and consult the authority about the proposed appointment. 


North Devon District Council has opted into PSAA’s auditor appointment 
arrangements. We have sent regular email communications to audited bodies about 
this process, and wrote to you on 19 June 2017 to advise you that we had completed 
a procurement to let audit contracts from 2018/19. Grant Thornton (UK) LLP was 
successful in winning a contract in the procurement, and we propose appointing this 
firm as the auditor of North Devon District Council. 


Grant Thornton UK comprises around 4,500 employees delivering services to 40,000 
clients. The public sector has played a significant role within the firm for over 30 
years. The UK Public Sector Assurance team employs 301 people, including 29 Key 
Audit Partners, based in designated ‘centres of excellence’, providing it with locally 
based public sector specialists across the country. The team is solely dedicated to 
public audit work in local government and the NHS, with contracts with PSAA, Audit 
Scotland and the Wales Audit Office. The Public Sector Assurance team is a regular 
commentator on issues facing the sector and oversees the firm’s development of 
appropriate thought leadership and support, such as its series of publications and 
workshops on income generation in local authorities. In addition, the team can draw 
on the commercial skills and experience of a wider assurance team of over 1,516 
individuals, to reflect the changing assurance needs of local authorities and NHS 
bodies.  


In developing this appointment proposal, we have applied the following principles, 
balancing competing demands as much as we can, based on the information 
provided to us by audited bodies and audit firms: 


 ensuring auditor independence, as we are required to do by the Regulations; 
 meeting our commitments to the firms under the audit contracts; 
 accommodating joint/shared working arrangements where these are relevant 


to the auditor’s responsibilities; 
 ensuring a balanced mix of authority types for each firm; 
 taking account of each firm’s principal locations; and 
 providing continuity of audit firm if possible, but avoiding long appointments. 



http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/appointing-person/

http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/appointing-person/





Further information on the auditor appointment process is available on our website. 


Responding to this consultation  
We are consulting you on the proposed appointment of Grant Thornton (UK) LLP to 
audit the accounts of North Devon District Council for five years from 2018/19. The 
consultation will close at 5pm on Friday 22 September 2017. 


If you are satisfied with the proposed appointment, please confirm this by email to 
auditorappointments@psaa.co.uk. No further action is needed from you. 


The PSAA Board will consider all proposed auditor appointments at its meeting 
scheduled for 14 December 2017. We will write by email to all opted-in bodies after 
this Board meeting to confirm auditor appointments. 


Process for objecting to the proposed auditor appointment  
If you wish to make representations to PSAA about the proposed auditor 
appointment, please send them by email to auditorappointments@psaa.co.uk  to 
arrive by 5pm on Friday 22 September 2017. 


Representations can include matters that you believe might be an impediment to the 
proposed firm’s independence, were it to be your appointed auditor. Your email 
should set out the reasons why you think the proposed appointment should not be 
made. The following may represent acceptable reasons: 


1. there is an independence issue in relation to the firm proposed as the auditor, 
which had not previously been notified to PSAA; 


2. there are formal and joint working arrangements relevant to the auditor’s 
responsibilities, which had not previously been notified to PSAA; or 


3. there is another valid reason, for example you can demonstrate a history of 
inadequate service from the proposed firm. 


We will consider carefully all representations and will respond by Monday 16 October 
2017 by email. 


If your representations are accepted, we will consult you on an alternative auditor 
appointment between 16-27 October 2017. If your representations are not accepted, 
we will confirm this to you. You may choose to make further representations to the 
PSAA Board, providing any additional information to support your case. 


We will write to all bodies to confirm the Board’s final decision on the appointment of 
the auditor before 21 December 2017. 


Scale fees for 2018/19  
We will consult on scale fees for 2018/19 in due course and will publish confirmed 
scale fees for 2018/19 for opted-in bodies on our website in March 2018. The results 
of the audit procurement indicate that a reduction in scale fees in the region of 
approximately 18 per cent should be possible for 2018/19, based on the individual 
scale fees applicable for 2016/17. Further information on the audit procurement is 
available on our website. 



http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/appointing-person/auditor-appointment-process/

mailto:auditorappointments@psaa.co.uk

mailto:auditorappointments@psaa.co.uk

http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/appointing-person/procurement-strategy/





Further information  
If you have any questions about your proposed auditor appointment or the 
consultation process, please email us at auditorappointments@psaa.co.uk. 


Yours sincerely  


Jon Hayes 
Chief Officer 


 



mailto:auditorappointments@psaa.co.uk






 


 


 


 


 
 


North Devon District Council 


Final Internal Audit Report 


IT Asset Management 2016/17 
 


June 2017 
 


This report has been prepared on the basis of the limitations set out on page 15. 


Report issued to:  


Chief Executive 


Head of Resources 


 


Mike Mansell 


Jon Triggs 


Business Information Support Manager  


Senior Technical Analyst 


Nina Lake 


Paul Shears 


  


This report (“Report”) was prepared by Mazars LLP at the request of North Devon District Council and terms for the preparation and scope of the Report have been agreed with them. The matters 
raised in this Report are only those which came to our attention during our internal audit work. Whilst every care has been taken to ensure that the information provided in this Report is as 
accurate as possible, Internal Audit have only been able to base findings on the information and documentation provided and consequently no complete guarantee can be given that this Report 
is necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist, or of all the improvements that may be required.  
This Report was prepared solely for the use of North Devon District Council and to the fullest extent permitted by law Mazars LLP accepts no responsibility and disclaims all liability to any third 
party who purports to use or rely for any reason whatsoever on the Report, its contents, conclusions, any extract, reinterpretation, amendment and/or modification. Accordingly, any reliance 
based on the report, its contents, conclusions, any extract, reinterpretation, amendment and/or modification by any third party is entirely at their own risk.  
 
Please refer to the Statement of Responsibility in Appendix B of this Report for further information about responsibilities, limitations and confidentiality
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Executive Summary  
Background 


IT Asset Management is an important part of an organisation’s strategy. It involves gathering detailed hardware and software inventory information which is 
then used to make decisions about hardware and software purchases and redistribution. IT Asset management helps organisations manage their systems more 
effectively and saves time and money by avoiding unnecessary asset purchases and promoting the harvesting of existing resources. Organisations that develop 
and maintain an effective IT asset management program further minimise the incremental risks and related costs of advancing IT portfolio infrastructure projects 
based on old, incomplete and/or less accurate information. 


Hardware Asset Management entails the management of the physical components of computers and computer networks, from acquisition through disposal. 
Common business practices include request and approval process, procurement management, life cycle management, redeployment and disposal 
management. A key component is capturing the financial information about the hardware life cycle which aids the organisation in making business decisions 
based on meaningful and measurable financial objectives. 


Software Asset Management is a similar process, focusing on software assets, including licenses, versions and installed endpoints. 


IT assets need to be tracked for risk management, accurate resource and budget allocation, and accountability of assets' whereabouts. A good solution for 
small organisation will enable them to search for assets they currently own, manage online and offline assets, and plan accurately for the future. These tasks, 
however, should be simple, secure and efficient because a small organisation’s IT professional's time is very valuable. 


 


  



https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Computer_networking

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Procurement

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Product_life_cycle_management

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Software_Asset_Management
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Audit Opinion & Summary of Findings 


Through the work undertaken, the following opinion has been provided: 


Audit Opinion 


 
 
 
Weaknesses in the system of controls are such as to put the system objectives at risk, and/or the level of non-compliance puts the system objectives at risk. 
For a key to the assurance ratings, see Appendix B – Reporting Definitions. 


Summary of Findings 


As a result of this Internal Audit, we have raised the following recommendations: 


Priority 
Number of 


Recommendations 
Area of Scope / Recommendation 


 


1 
IT Asset Management Policies and Procedures – Revise and update Asset Management Policy.  


  


 


 


6 


 


Asset Loss Procedure – Develop and publish and appropriate Asset Loss Procedure.  


Disposal Procedure – Develop and publish and appropriate disposal procedure. 


IT Asset Lifecycle Plan – Develop an Asset Lifecycle Management Plan 


Asset Management Roles & Responsibilities – Responsibilities for asset management should be 
clearly defined.  


Annual review of IT Assets – Devise a formal schedule of review for IT assets.  


Asset Management Database – System remains fit for purpose. 


  


0 


 


 


 
 
 


Limited 
Assurance 
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Section 1 – Detailed Summary of Key Findings  


Area 1:  Policies and Procedures 


It has been established from discussion with the Information Technology department that the current Asset Management Policy in place is out of date and does  
not appear to be readily available to staff or management.  It has also been established from review of the current policy version dated June 2014 and subsequent 
revision history that there is no policy review schedule in place. Based upon these findings, recommendations have been made (Recommendation 1) 


There is no formal structure in place defining the individual’s responsibilities specifically for the IT Asset management process. During the course of the review 
it was established there is only one individual that is fully aware of the process in its entirety. This poses a risk to continuity of service in the form of single point 
failure, in the event that the individual was unable to perform their defined role for any significant length of time. Based upon this finding a recommendation has 
been made (Recommendation 2) 


From discussions with the Business Information Support Manager, it has been established that no IT Asset Lifecycle programme is in place. Currently, the 
Council have adopted a reactive approach to hardware replacement whereby, in the event an asset should fail or come to end of life, a business case is 
developed and a request for funding made. Because of the rapid pace of technological innovation, the Council should define a technology refresh cycle for IT 
assets. Based upon this finding a recommendation has been made (Recommendation 3) 


 


Area 2: Maintenance of the Asset Register/Configuration Management Database (CMDB) 


At present, the ICT estate within the Council is relatively small and in its current state due to the low number of mobile devices the asset database is manageable 
in its current form. This has been established as a result of testing a sample of 45 assets within the database and tracking them through to a physical location, 
ensuring they all have appropriate corresponding security tags.  All assets within the sample were located and could be easily referenced back to the Database. 
At the time of the review, the Council had recently undertaken an audit of IT assets due to a location move and hardware refresh, however, despite this it has 
been confirmed that without these contributing factors an annual audit would not have usually taken place due to time and resource issues. Based on this 
finding a recommendation has been made (Recommendation 4) 


It has been noted with the current system and lack of formal processes in place, the maintenance of the IT Asset Management Data Base is extremely resource 
intensive and as the ICT estate continues to grow and the working practices of the Council evolve to a more agile environment the current system may not 
continue to fully suit the needs of the Council. 


Therefore, a recommendation has been made in this area (recommendation 5). Consideration should be given to establishing whether the current system will 
remain fit for purpose going forward. The Council should investigate alternative, more cost effective and efficient Asset Management solutions.  


 


Area 3: Security of Hardware  


All new equipment awaiting issue is kept within the IT department. Access is restricted by swipe card for staff and all visitors have to sign in at the main entry 
point to the building and then call the respective department to gain entry. The sites visited all had onsite security in the form of either intruder alarm or CCTV 
managed by the Estates Department.  
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The Inventory is spread across 2 rooms (Build room and Store room). Both these doors were locked at the time of the review, they are accessible only to IT 
staff either with key pad or key entry. All inventory awaiting issue and disposal is kept in the main storage room with access restricted by keypad and an 
additional padlock, the key to which is kept in the safe locked inside the secure server room.  An inspection of the Council sites to evaluate whether IT equipment 
is sufficiently protected from general viewing by members of the public identified no security concerns. 


 


Area 4: Asset Loss Management Procedures 


There are no formal Asset Loss Procedures in place within the Council. At present, they are reliant on a common sense approach by staff whereby lost or stolen 
assets are reported to the police and ICT who will take appropriate action and update the Database accordingly. However, from conversations with the Senior 
Technical Analyst and Technical Analyst and due to the limited number of mobile devices they are only aware of 2 incidents off asset loss within the Council.   


As the Council moves to a more agile working environment and increases its mobile estate, the risk of loss or theft of devices increase. Procedures should be 
developed to ensure staff are aware of the correct process to follow and should include but not limited to, what information should be reported, to whom and 
the timeframes involved. Without and appropriate procedure in place and failure to report theft or loss could result in potential financial loss and reputational 
risk to the Council. Based upon these findings a recommendation has been made (Recommendation 6) 


 


Area 5: Disposal Procedures 


Whilst there is a process in place for the disposal of IT equipment, it has not been fully or formally documented. The previous out of date policy did have a brief 
section on disposal, however, this is no longer fit for purpose and needs to be reviewed. Currently, there is a 2 part process to disposals – (1) equipment that 
does not require secure confidential destruction is recycled in house at the Council’s recycling facility, this includes old equipment such as monitors and 
keyboards; (2) additional equipment that holds confidential Council data such as PC’s or Laptops, ICT remove the hard drives and the empty shell is recycled 
as per the in house process. Hard drives are then disposed of in batches via a 3rd party provider. However, from conversations with the Senior Technical Analyst 
due to the Network set up, utilisation of Wyse Boxes, and small number of PC’s and laptops the need for confidential data destruction is a rare occurrence.  


It was noted that the last batch of devices sent for destruction was in 2016 and whilst they received a confirmation of collection it had very little detail to establish 
what was actually collected and subsequently they received no certificate of destruction from the 3rd party provider, confirming secure and confidential disposal 
of the data and in line with the WEEE regulation (Waste Electric and Electronic Equipment (WEEE) Regulations 2013). Based on these findings, a 
recommendation has been made (Recommendation 7). 
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Section 2 – Recommendations / Matters Arising 


1. IT Asset Management Policy and Procedure                                                 Priority 1 


Recommendation Rationale Responsibility 


The Council should develop a formal IT Asset Management 
Policy and Framework, which clearly sets out the objectives 
and responsibilities of the Council and its staff.  The current 
procedures should be updated, approved and incorporated into 
the framework.  


 The documents should include review dates and version 
control history. 


 The Policy should then be approved via the appropriate 
committee or board. 


 Once approved, the policy should then be published and 
disseminated to all staff throughout the organisation. 


 Regular administrator bulletins should be posted to ensure 
continued staff awareness of the importance of IT security 
and asset management. 


 A formal policy review schedule should be developed to 
ensure that departmental policies remain current and fit for 
purpose.   


 


An up-to-date IT Asset Management Policy will provide a 
formal and consistent approach to the management of IT 
assets. The introduction of formal review schedule will ensure 
that departmental policies and procedures are reviewed on a 
timely basis and are accurate and up to date.  


Continued awareness raising of Council policies and 
procedures will ensure that all staff are aware of their 
responsibilities with regards to asset management. 


 


It has been established from discussion with the Senior 
Technical Analyst that the current Asset Management Policy 
is out of date and no longer fit for purpose. There should be 
an approved policy in place which clearly outlines the 
Council’s responsibility, accountability and objectives with 
regards to the management of assets. Whilst the IT 
department have developed their own internal process for 
asset management, these are not formally documented and 
are not readily available to staff throughout the Council.  


 


Without approved policies and a timely review process staff 
may not be fully aware of their responsibilities, the Council’s 
current working practices and any legislative requirements 
with regards to the appropriate management and use of 
assets. This could lead to an increased risk of compromise to 
an organisation’s information assets and may also result in 
reputational damage or financial loss. 


 


Management response   


Accepted. A new Policy will be developed with review dates and version control built in. This will gain formal approval from 
Senior Management Team to ensure they are clear on their responsibilities for the assets they have requested. 


BIS Manager 


September 2017 
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2. IT Asset Management Lifecycle Procedure                                                 Priority 2 
Recommendation 


 
Rationale Responsibility 


In developing an Asset Management Policy and framework, the 
Council should incorporate a lifecycle approach that allows the 
Council to make risk-informed decisions on when to replace an 
IT asset. The lifecycle plan should include the planning, 
acquisition, maintenance and disposal of IT assets over their 
useful life. 


The plan should include an estimated budget set up at the 
beginning of the year, to address lifecycle management needs. 
This would provide the basis for funding requests. 


Planning IT asset acquisitions ensures that end-users have 
the appropriate tools to support the goals of the Council, and 
that the funds allocated to these assets are spent with due 
regard to efficiency and economy. 


 


The Council does not have a documented framework for asset 
lifecycle management and, as a result, the purchases of IT 
assets are not always executed in a manner that provides the 
opportunity to optimise return on investment.  


 


An ad-hoc process is utilised to determine how and when 
assets are replaced. As there is currently no designated 
refresh budget for IT assets, purchases are authorised 
following development of a business case and request for 
funding. Assets tend to be replaced in bulk all at once.  


 


The risk is that due to the nature and life expectancy of IT 
assets, there is the potential for multiple failures to occur 
resulting in significant impact on continuity of service and 
additional unexpected and unplanned costs. Furthermore, the 
Council may not be taking advantage of rapid changes in 
technology. 


 


Management response   


Accepted. The BIS Management will work with the Head of Finance to develop a lifecycle approach for asset management. BIS Manager 


September 2017 
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3. Responsibility for Asset Management                                                                                              Priority 2 


Recommendation Rationale Responsibility 


Formal responsibilities should be defined for the asset 
management process. Additional staff should be trained and 
made fully aware of the process to ensure continuity of service 
in the event that the IT Support Officer currently responsible is 
absent for any significant length of time. 


Formally assigning responsibility and additional staff training 
will increase the level of control ensuring there is continuity of 
service.  


 


At the time of the review it was established, through 
discussions with the Technical Analyst and Senior Technical 
Analyst, that there is only one individual who is fully aware of 
the process in its entirety. 


 


This poses a risk to continuity of service in the form of single 
point failure, in the event that the individual was unable to 
perform their defined role for any significant length of time. 


 


Management response  


Accepted. Formal responsibilities will be defined and built into the new policy. Additional staff in the Infrastructure Team will 
be involved in the development of the Policy and fully trained to ensure there isn’t a single point of failure. 


Senior Technical Analyst 


September 2017 
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4. Annual Review of IT Assets                                                      Priority 2 


Recommendation Rationale Responsibility 


An annual check of the asset register should be undertaken. If 
this is not feasible, regular spot checks should be carried out 
and independently verified. 


 


Annual or regular spot checks of assets recorded on the 
register will provide assurance to the Council on the accuracy 
of the asset register and will help identify any missing assets. 


 


It has been noted that at the time of the audit that the Council 
had recently undertaken an audit of IT assets due to a 
relocation and hardware refresh. However, it has been 
confirmed that without these contributing factors an annual 
audit would not have usually taken place due to time and 
resource issues.  


 


Without continuous check of the accuracy of the asset 
register, there is a risk of inaccurate information being 
available on IT assets which in turn could impair 
management's ability to determine impact of changes, 
improve security by controlling the assets in use, maintain 
adherence to legal obligations and carry out financial and 
expenditure planning. 


 


  


Accepted. A job will be created with the Service Desk to prompt annual checks. In addition to this, spot checks on staff with 
mobile assets will be conducted. 


Senior ICT Support 
Officer 


July 2017 
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5. Asset Management Database                                                                      Priority 2 


Recommendation Rationale Responsibility 


Consideration should be given to establishing whether the 
current Asset Management Database will remain fit for purpose 
going forward. The Council should investigate alternative, more 
cost effective and efficient Asset Management solutions. 


Having an effective Asset Management Database/Application 
in place will allow the Council to more effectively and 
efficiently manage the IT estate. 


 


It has been noted with the current system and lack of formal 
processes in place, the maintenance of the IT Asset 
Management Database is extremely resource intensive and 
as the ICT estate continues to grow and the working practices 
of the Council evolve to a more agile environment the current 
system may not continue to fully suit the needs of the Council. 


 


From a review of the system in place, while it maintains a 
detailed record of assets it is difficult to easily establish a full 
inventory of the estate and export the information.  


 


Without a system that is fit for purpose, there is a risk of 
inaccurate information being available on IT assets which in 
turn could impair management's ability to determine impact of 
changes, improve security by controlling the assets in use, 
maintain adherence to legal obligations and carry out financial 
and expenditure planning. 


 


 


Management response  


Agreed. The feasibility of a new system will be considered, but this would need to be balanced against the costs as our 
existing system is currently fit for purpose although labour intensive. 


Senior Technical Analyst 


March 2018 
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6. Asset Loss Procedures                                                                      Priority 2 


Recommendation Rationale Responsibility 


The lost and stolen device process should be developed to 
ensure it reflects the current working practice of the 
organisation.  


 


The process should then form part of the overall IT Asset 
Management policy and framework.  


 


Any asset reported lost or stolen should be immediately 
recorded on the asset register and a record kept of when the 
asset was reported lost or stolen, by whom and if the device 
has been remotely wiped or locked out and if necessary 
reported to the Information Commissioner. 


If staff are regularly made aware of the importance of reporting 
the loss or theft of an asset and follow the correct procedures, 
this will decrease the time taken in reporting the missing 
assets and ensure IT can take appropriate measures to de-
activate or lock out devices and also comply with the 
requirements of the Information Commissioner in reporting 
missing device. 


 


At present, due to the limited number of mobile devices the 
Council have had very few losses. However as the number of 
devices increases the risk of loss and theft increase.  


A lost and stolen device process is not readily available to all 
staff throughout the organisation. 


 


There is a risk the Council may face reputational damage or 
financial loss and even may result in an enquiry from the 
Information Commissioner should the missing device contain 
personal data.  


 


Management response  


Accepted. A formal process with defined responsibilities will be developed, built into the new policy and published on Insite. A 
job will be created with the service desk to prompt an email to raise awareness on data protection and information security, to 
also include lost and stolen devices. As part of our Data Protection & Information Security training and advice, the process for 
lost or stolen assets will be built into the training programme. 


Due date: Training at a Manager’s Forum – June 2017 + ongoing engagement to align with new General Data Protection 
Regulations. 


BIS Manager 


Data Protection Officer 


Senior ICT Support 
Officer 


September 2017 
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7. Asset Disposal Procedure                                                                                                              Priority 2 


Recommendation Rationale Responsibility 


The Disposal procedure should be reviewed to ensure it 
reflects the current working practice of the organisation and 
includes all mobile assets, laptops, smart phones and Tablet 
PC’s.  


The process should then form part of the overall IT Asset 
Management policy.  


An inventory of all assets awaiting disposal should be 
maintained prior to collection by the 3rd party provider.  


Signed confirmation should always be obtained from the 3rd 
party provider upon collection. This should include a brief 
description of the asset and quantity and countersigned by a 
member of Council staff.  


The Council should also ensure it receives certificate of 
destruction from the 3rd party provider in line with WEEE 
Regulation, this again should include a brief description and 
quantity to allow the Council to reconcile the assets destroyed 
against assets sent for destruction.  


 


An appropriate disposal procedure will help ensure that the 
Council assets have been recorded, tracked and disposed of 
appropriately in accordance with internal policy and WEEE 
regulations. 


  


At the time of the review it was confirmed due to the size and 
nature of the IT estate secure destruction of assets containing 
council data is a rare occurrence. At the time of the audit we 
were able to locate 2 confirmation of collection invoices, 
however, one of these did not state the quantity of assets 
collected, and at the time the Council were unable to provide 
any additional information from the 3rd party provider 
confirming successful disposal.  


 


It was also established that there is no process in place for the 
disposal of mobile/smart phones or tablet PC’s. Currently, un-
used or old phones are kept in a desk drawer in the IT 
department.   


 


If disposals are not accurately recorded and disposed in line 
with WEEE regulation, there is a risk that assets which 
potentially contain sensitive data are not appropriately 
disposed of and may be accessed inappropriately. These can 
lead to potential reputational and financial loss to the Council. 


 


Management response   


Accepted. The disposal procedure will be reviewed to include all mobile assets, built into the new policy and published on 
Insite. This procedure will ensure that contractual arrangements with third parties will provide an audit trail from collection to 
destruction. 


Senior Technical Analyst 


September 2017 
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Appendix A – Audit Framework 


Audit Objectives 


The audit was designed to ensure that management have implemented adequate and effective controls over the IT Asset Management at North Devon District 
Council. 


Audit Approach & Methodology 


The audit approach was developed with reference to the Internal Audit Plan and by an assessment of risks and management controls operating within each 
area of the scope.  The following procedures were adopted:- 


 Identification of the role and objectives of each area; 


 Identification of risks within the systems, and controls in existence to allow the control objectives to be achieved; and 


 Testing of controls within the systems. 


From these procedures we have identified weaknesses in the systems of control, produced specific proposals to improve the control environment and have 
drawn an overall conclusion on the design and operation of the system.  See Appendix B for details of the Audit team and staff interviewed. 


Areas Covered 


Audit work was undertaken to cover the following areas and control objectives: - 


 Policies and Procedures  


 Maintenance of the Asset Register / Configuration Management Database (CMDB) 


 Security of Hardware 


 Asset Loss Management Procedure 


 Disposal Procedure 
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Appendix B – Reporting Definitions 


In order to assist management in using our reports: 


a) We categorise our audit opinion according to our assessment of the controls in place and the level of compliance with these controls:  


Full 
Assurance 


There is a sound system of control designed to achieve the system objectives and the controls are being consistently 
applied. 


Substantial 
Assurance  


While there is a basically sound system, there are weaknesses which put some of the system objectives at risk, and 
/ or there is evidence that the level of non-compliance with some of the controls may put some of the system objectives 
at risk. 


Limited 
Assurance 


Weaknesses in the system of controls are such as to put the system objectives at risk, and/or the level of non-
compliance puts the system objectives at risk. 


Nil 
Assurance  


Control is generally weak, leaving the system open to significant error or abuse, and/or significant non-compliance 
with basic controls leaves the system open to error or abuse. 


 


b) We categorise our recommendations according to their level of priority. 


  


 


High Priority Recommendation 
Major issues that we consider need to be brought to the attention of senior management and the audit committee. 


 


Medium Priority Recommendation 
Important issues which should be addressed by management in their areas of responsibility. 


 


Low Priority Recommendation 
Detailed problems of a minor nature resolved on site through discussions with local management. 
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Appendix C – Staff Interviewed 


Audit Team Staff Consulted 


Mark Towler – Engagement Director Nina Lake – Business Information Support Manager 


Rachel De Bradeny – Engagement Manager Paul Shears - Senior Technical Analyst 


John Wakefield – IT Auditor Aaron Yates - Technical Analyst 


Contact Details: Rachel.DeBradney@mazars.co.uk 
 


 


An exit meeting was held with the Business Information Support Manager and Senior Technical Analyst on 2nd June 2017. 


Acknowledgement 


We would like to thank the Management and staff involved in the audit work for their assistance. 
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Statement of Responsibility 


 
Mazars LLP - June 2017 


 


    


Mark Towler Director Mark.Towler@Mazars.co.uk 07710 811056 


Rachel De Bradney Engagement Manager Rachel.DeBradney@mazars.co.uk 07881 283 639 


John Wakefield  IT Auditor John.Wakefield@mazars.co.uk 07387 242 066 


 


We take responsibility to North Devon District Council for this report which is prepared on the basis of the limitations set out below. 
 
The responsibility for designing and maintaining a sound system of internal control and the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities rests with 
management, with internal audit providing a service to management to enable them to achieve this objective. Specifically, we assess the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the system of internal control arrangements implemented by management and perform sample testing on those controls in the period under 
review with a view to providing an opinion on the extent to which risks in this area are managed. 
 
We plan our work in order to ensure that we have a reasonable expectation of detecting significant control weaknesses. However, our procedures alone 
should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses in internal controls, nor relied upon to identify any circumstances of fraud or irregularity. 
Even sound systems of internal control can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance and may not be proof against collusive fraud. 
 
The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our work and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement 
of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. Recommendations for improvements should be assessed by you for their full impact 
before they are implemented. The performance of our work is not and should not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application 
of sound management practices. 


This report is confidential and must not be disclosed to any third party or reproduced in whole or in part without our prior written consent. To the fullest extent 
permitted by law Mazars LLP accepts no responsibility and disclaims all liability to any third party who purports to use or rely for any reason whatsoever on the 
Report, its contents, conclusions, any extract, reinterpretation amendment and/or modification by any third party is entirely at their own risk. 


Registered office: Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way, London E1W 1DD, United Kingdom. Registered in England and Wales No 0C308299. 
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NORTH DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 


REPORT TO: AUDIT COMMITTEE 


Date: 5th September 2017 


TOPIC: AUDIT RECOMMENDATION TRACKER 


REPORT BY: HEAD OF CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY 
SERVICES 


 


1 Introduction 
 


1.1 This is the regular progress report to the Committee in relation to action taken to 
address internal and external audit recommendations. 


 
2. Recommendations 


 
2.1 That the Committee note the actions that have been taken to address identified risks 


since the 4th July 2017 Committee meeting. 
 


2.2 That the Committee raises any areas of concern arising from the list of outstanding 
recommendations. 


 


3. Reasons for Recommendations 
 


3.1 To give assurance to the Committee that audit recommendations are being actively 
managed, and to give the Committee a full opportunity to review any areas of concern. 


 


4. Report 
 


4.1 SMT has reviewed the high and medium risk audit recommendations to assess progress 
and instigate any required actions. 
 


4.2 Since the last meeting the number of recommendations now tracked has risen to 1,128.
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4.3  
 


 


Table A) Live Audit Reports, Status & Numbers 
 
Code 
 


 
Title 


 
Status 


 
Progress 


 
High 
Risk 


 
Medium 
Risk 


 
Low 
Risk 


14 AP Action Plan 2013/14  Overdue 92% 0 1 1 


14 E&D Equality & Diversity 2013/14  Overdue 50% 0 1 2 


15 AH Affordable Housing  2014/15  Overdue 85% 0 1 4 


15 APAP Audit Plan Action Plan YR End Mar 2015  Overdue 92% 0 1 1 


15 DR Disaster Recovery 2015/16  Overdue 89% 0 6 0 


15 ES Efficiency Savings  Overdue 82% 0 1 1 


15 HN (CBL) Housing Needs (Choice Based Lettings) 2015/16  Overdue 60% 0 1 0 


15 PSR (DFG) Private Sector Renewal (Disability Facilities Grants) 
2015/16 


  Overdue 86% 0 1 2 


15 RM&CG Risk Management & Corporate Governance 2014/15  Overdue 87% 0 1 3 


16 BCM Business Continuity Management 2015/16  In Progress 80% 0 8 1 


16 EP Emergency Planning 2015/16  In Progress 75% 0 5 6 


16 L Licencing  Overdue 0% 0 0 1 


16 CSC Customer Service Centre 2015/2016  Overdue 60% 0 1 4 


16 BC Building Control 2016/17  Overdue 0% 0 0 3 


16 CC Cash Collection 2015/16  Overdue 95% 0 0 2 


16 HN (CBL) Housing Needs (Choice Based Lettings) 2016/17  Overdue 85% 0 0 5 


16 PL Planning Applications 2015/16  Overdue 91% 0 3 0 


16 SP Severance Packages 2015/16  Overdue 50% 0 1 1 


16 C&CE Contracts and Capital Expenditure  Overdue 50% 0 2 1 


17 MAS&BC  Main Accounting System & Budgetary Control 2016/17  In Progress 0% 0 0 1 


17 C Creditors (including ordering process) 2016/17  Overdue 86% 0 0 4 


17 RM&CG Risk Management & Corporate Governance 2016/17  Overdue 68% 0 3 1 


17 ITAM  IT Asset Management  In Progess 14% 1 6 0 


 
 
Table B) Audit recommendations setting completed since the last Audit Committee 
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Recommendation Closure Note Original Due 


Date 
Completed 
Date 


16 ITIL 04 Management 
Information and External 
Integration 


Closure Note: ICT have now set up a page on Insite entitled ICT Updates - this page sets 
out developments that are in the pipeline or have been delivered + achievement against 
our Service Level Agreements. The IT Service Desk will update this page every 2 months. 
Like to page: http://insite.northdevon.gov.uk/services/chief-executive-and-
corporate/ict/ict-updates/  


30-Jun-2017 28-Jul-2017 


16 ITIL 05 Customer 
Interface 


Closure Note: The customer interface has now been developed on Insite with various 
pages setting out what we do, processes and forms to request changes. Monthly updates 
on developments. Plus our Change Advisory Board are meeting regularly to discuss non 
standard requests. 


30-Jun-2017 28-Jul-2017 


17 ATAM 04 Annual 
Review of IT Assets 


Spot checks have been scheduled into the service desk work programme and an annual 
review programme is being developed & will be set out in the Asset Management Policy 


31-Jul-2017 16-Aug-2017 


14 FM 03 Fraud 
Awareness Programme 
with training sessions & e-
learning package 


Fraud awareness training rolled out online through MyInsite. 


 


31-Dec-2014 21-08-2017 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



http://insite.northdevon.gov.uk/services/chief-executive-and-corporate/ict/ict-updates/

http://insite.northdevon.gov.uk/services/chief-executive-and-corporate/ict/ict-updates/
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Table C) Outstanding Audit Recommendations where Heads of Service have requested a revision to the due date1 
 


Code Description Progress 
Requested revised due date + latest 


note 
Original Due 
Date 


Due Date 


17 RM&CG 02 
Completeness of 
Service Risk 
Registers 


Heads of Service should ensure all 
service risk registers have identified, 
assessed and scored all risks, with 
risk owners identified. Any mitigating 
controls, present or planned, should 
also be noted in each risk register.  


 


Service Risk registers have been placed 
on the SMT agenda each week for the last 
couple of months and is ongoing; these 
are being reviewed and challenged by 
Senior Management Team. 
Last few risk registers being reviewed by 
SMT through September/October; request 
date change of 31 October 2017 


30-Apr-2017 30-Apr-2017 


16 PL 03 S106 
Agreements 


We recommend that as part of the 
Contract audit 2016/17 a review the 
administration of Section 106 
Agreements is completed to assess 
the effectiveness of service delivery.  


 


Process Review has been undertaken and 
the draft Process has been mapped. To be 
tested with internal and external 
stakeholders over Q1 2017 - 18. New 
Planning ICT system being procured to 
also incorporate monitoring of section 106 
agreements; request date change of 30 
September 2018 
 


31-Dec-2016 31-Dec-2016 


16 C & CE 03 
Training 


The Council should ensure that all 
staff with responsibility for contract 


management have undergone 
appropriate training.  


 


Agreed - A scheme of training on contract 
management will be suggested to the 


appropriate members of staff as part of the 
appraisal round that is just commencing 
and a training scheme will then be put in 
place.  Current appraisal round due to 
complete end September 2017 which 


includes training requirements; request 
date change of 31 December 2017 


 


30-Apr-2017 30-Apr-2017 


 


 
 


                                           
1 Where possible show what if any progress has been made since the last time the recommendation was reported. 
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Table D: Outstanding Audit Recommendations 
 


Code Description Progress Latest Note 
Original 
Due Date 


Due Date 


15 HN (CBL) 01 
Housing Team to 
review the housing 
waiting list to confirm 
details are still correct 
/ change in 
circumstances, that 
they wish to remain on 
the register + review 
all Band B every 6 
months 


Housing Waiting List Review 
The Housing team should undertake a review of 
all applicants to:  
.         Confirm that the details on the register are 
still correct  
.         Check whether there have been any 
changes in an applicant’s circumstances  
.         Confirm that the applicant wants to stay 
on the housing register. The Housing team 
should also contact, or at least review, all 
applicants in Band B every 6 months, although 
this would exclude those for prevention of 
homelessness or statutory homelessness as 
these are reviewed weekly as standard.  


 
12-May-2017 Revised due date approved 
by Audit Committee 9th May 2017. 


31-Oct-
2015 


30-Jun-2017 


16 C & CE 02 Due 
Diligence of 
Consultants 


The Council's contract procedure guidance 
should include the due diligence of consultants.   


12-May-2017 Request for revised due 
date approved by Audit Committee 9th 
May 2017. 


30-Sep-
2016 


31-Jul-2017 
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5. Progress tracking of Annual Governance Statement 
 


5.1 An annual review of NDC’s governance arrangements leads to the Annual Governance 
Statement, which forms part of the Statement of Accounts.  


 
5.2 In addition to any other issues the review captures recommendations from external and 


internal audit and inspections and sets out an action plan. This plan is tracked through 
Covalent.  


 


2013/14 AGS action plan is 98 % complete 


2014/15 AGS action plan is 96 % complete 


 
6. Constitution Context  
 


Appendix and 
paragraph 


Referred or 
delegated power? 


5.5 Delegated 
 


7. Statement of Internal Advice 
 
7.1 The author (below) confirms that advice has been taken from all appropriate Councillors 


and officers. 
 


 
Author: Sarah Higgins     Date: 17


th
 August 2017   


Reference: Audit Recommendation Report September 2017 V.1.0 
 


. 
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Table E: Annual Governance Statement 
 


Code Description Status Progress Bar Latest Note 
Original Due 
Date 


Due Date 


14 AGS 02 Review & 
update the IT Disaster 
Recovery Plan 


To have in place an 
adequate plan and policy 
to deal with major ICT 
risks 


 In Progress 
 


 
No Change 


A report is going to SMT on Tuesday 20
th
 


June setting out the disparity between the 
current disaster recovery plan and the 
expectations of services in their business 
impact assessments. SMT will need to 
make decisions on those priority services 
and the results of this will inform the DR 
plan. 


31-Mar-2015 31-Oct-2017 


15 AGS 08 Complete 
audit recommendations to 
comply with agreed 
deadlines 


 
 


 Overdue 
 


 


 
 


No Change 


12-Jan-2017 There are some 2015/16 
audit recommendations outstanding that 
are currently still being working on. 


31-Mar-2016 31-Mar-2016 


 








Audit Committee Work Programme 2017/18 


This work programme provides structure for the Audit Committee to ensure it receives reports and updates at the 


appropriate meetings throughout the year. It is reviewed and updated at each committee meeting.  


 
 


9/5/17 4/7/17 5/9/17 7/11/17 9/1/18 6/3/18 


North Devon Council items 
 


      


Review of the Committee’s 
Terms of Reference 


      


Annual Review of the 
Committee’s effectiveness 


      


Half Yearly Report of the Chair 
of the Audit Committee. 


      


Annual Governance 
Statement 


      


Statement of Accounts 
 


      


Corporate Risk Register 
 
 


      


Major changes to Accounting 
Policies Management 
procedures to be reported by 
the Head of Resources 
 


      


Review on Governance 
Arrangements 


      


21:21 Phase 2 Report 
 


      


Update on Business 
Continuity 
 
 


      







 
 


9/5/17 4/7/17 5/9/17 7/11/17 9/1/18 6/3/18 


Internal Audit items 
 


      


Internal Audit Annual report 
 


      


Internal Audit Strategy and 
Plan 


      


Internal Audit Charter (Once a 
year) 


      


Internal Audit Report 
– IT Asset Management 


      


External Audit items 
 


      


External Audit Fee Letter 
 


      


Audit Findings Report 
 


      


External Audit Annual Audit 
Letter 


      


External Audit Plan 
 


      


External Audit Letter of 
Representation 


      


Certification Work Report 
 


      


External Audit Progress 
Report 


      


Standing Items 
 


      


Internal Audit Progress Report 
 


      


Audit Recommendation 
Tracker 


      


Work Programme 
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This report (“Report”) was prepared by Mazars LLP at the request of North Devon District Council and terms for the preparation and scope 
of the Report have been agreed with them. The matters raised in this Report are only those which came to our attention during our internal 


audit work. Whilst every care has been taken to ensure that the information provided in this Report is as accurate as possible, Internal Audit 


have only been able to base findings on the information and documentation provided and consequently no complete guarantee can be given 
that this Report is necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist, or of all the improvements that may be required.  


This Report was prepared solely for the use of North Devon District Council and to the fullest extent permitted by law Mazars LLP accepts 


no responsibility and disclaims all liability to any third party who purports to use or rely for any reason whatsoever on the Report, its 
contents, conclusions, any extract, reinterpretation, amendment and/or modification. Accordingly, any reliance based on the report, its 


contents, conclusions, any extract, reinterpretation, amendment and/or modification by any third party is entirely at their own risk.  


Please refer to the Statement of Responsibility in Appendix III of this Report for further information about responsibilities, limitations and 
confidentiality. 
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1. INTRODUCTION 


1.1 The purpose of internal audit is to provide Members and the Chief Executive, through the 
Audit Committee, with an independent and objective opinion on risk management, control and 
governance and their effectiveness in achieving North Devon District Council’s agreed 
objectives.  In order to provide this opinion, we are required to review annually the risk 
management and governance processes within North Devon District Council and on a cyclical 
basis, the operation of internal control systems within the organisation.  


   


1.2 This report sets out the internal audit activity since the last Audit Committee meeting in July 
2017 for North Devon District Council.  


   


2. COMPLETION OF THE INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN  


2.1 Appendix I details the 2017/18 Audit Plan and shows the status of work to date and the 
number of days delivered.   


The following tables summarise progress against the plan:  


Number of audits in plan  17  


Number of audits finalised  2 12% 


Number of audits issued at draft  0 0% 


Number of audits in progress 4 24% 


Number of audits with agreed planned dates 2 12% 


Number of audits to be planned 9 52% 


 
2.2 We can report that 32% (excluding contingency) of the 2017/18 Operational Internal Audit 


Plan has been completed, based on the number of days delivered.   


2.3 We have now issued the following final reports. 


Council Tax and NNDR 


Housing Benefits 


 


2.4 Appendix II details the 2017/18 Audit recommendations for individual reports with a full or 
substantial overall opinion finalised since the last Audit Committee meeting.  
Recommendations with a priority rating of 2 are detailed in full whilst those with a rating of 3 
are not shown in detail.  In addition an overall audit opinion is given for each report.   


Management responses are only included where there is a substantial comment.  Where 
management has accepted the recommendation this has not been included. 
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Significant Control Weaknesses 2017/18 


2.5 Based on the work we have undertaken, there are no Priority One recommendations to bring 
to the attention of the Audit Committee.  


Performance of the Internal Audit Service   


2.6 The following table details the Internal Audit service performance for the 2017/18 year 
measured against the key performance indicators set out in the Internal Audit Quality Plan.   


 


No. Performance indicator  Target  Actual  


1. A close out meeting to be held for each audit 
 


100% 100% 


2. Average period between the close out meeting and 
issue of the draft report   


10 days 30 days 


3. Average period between the receipt of final 
management responses and issue of the final report  
 


10 days  1 day 


4. Average customer satisfaction score (measured by 
survey for each audit) – (Target is 85% of 3 or above)  
5=Very good; 4=Good; 3=Satisfactory; 2=Poor; 1= Very poor 


No results to date 


 


3. Action Required   


3.1 The Audit Committee is asked to note our progress report. 
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Appendix I – Progress against the Internal Audit Plan 2017/18 


 


 Audit Title Proposed 
Quarter 


Planned 
Days 


Anticipated 
Risk Level 


Assurance Priority 


One 


Priority 


Two 


Priority 


Three 


 Status 


1. Risk Management and 
Corporate Governance 


Q3 10 Medium      


2. Main Accounting 
System and Budgetary 
Control 


Q3 12 High     Work programmed in for November 2017 


3. Debtors Q2 8 Medium     Fieldwork completed  - work is under review 


4. Payroll Q2 10 Medium     Fieldwork completed  - work is under review 


5. Treasury Management Q2 8 Medium     Fieldwork completed  - work is under review 


6. Council Tax and NNDR Q1 15 Medium Substantial    Final report – 22 August 2017 


7. Housing Benefits Q1 10 Medium Substantial    Final report – 22 August 2017 


8. Affordable Housing 
(including temporary 
accommodation) 


Q2 10 Medium     Work programmed in for January 2018 


9. Parking Operations Q2 10 Medium      


10. Street Cleansing Q2 10 Medium     Work programmed in for November 2017 


11. Licensing Q1 10 High     Fieldwork completed  - work is under review 


12. Customer Services 
Centre 


Q3 10 High      


13. Commissioning and 
Procurement (including 
the use of agency staff 
and consultants)  


Q3 10 Medium      


14. Health and Safety Q3 10 Medium      
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 Audit Title Proposed 
Quarter 


Planned 
Days 


Anticipated 
Risk Level 


Assurance Priority 


One 


Priority 


Two 


Priority 


Three 


 Status 


15. Information Technology  


(to include Outlook 
system & exchange 
server security – 10 
days, with further audit 
choices to follow) 


Q4 22 High      


16. Lynton and Lynmouth 
Agency 


Q1 10 Medium     Work programed in 


17. Grants Administration Q3 5 Medium      


16. Crematorium Q4 3 N/A      


17. Follow Up Q4 10 N/A      


18. Contingency  5       


19. Audit Management  22       


 Total  220       
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Appendix II – Internal Audit Recommendations 2017/18 


Council Tax and NNDR Substantial 
Assurance 


 


  


Scope 


The audit covered the following areas:  


 Policies and procedures; 


 Convenient methods of payment; 


 Billing and Receipts; 


 Clearance from Suspense Accounts; 


 Income maximisation and Recovery Action; 


 


 Writing Off Irrecoverable Income; 


 Monitoring Collection Rates; 


 Reconciliation with General Ledger; 


 Refunds and Void Allowance; 


 IT Security and Access. 


 


Three priority 2 recommendations were raised 


 


Recommendation Rationale Management Response 


Revenues Policies and Procedures 
should be reviewed to ensure they are 
up to date and contain the most recent 
policy changes. 


Policies and procedure manuals should be up to date to ensure 
officers know to follow the current best practice. 


From a sample of five documents tested, we noted five had not 
been reviewed in the last year. 


Where policy and procedure manuals are not up to date, there is a 
risk that staff will not be aware of the most recent practices. This 
could lead to outdated processes being used in the Revenues 
Team causing inefficiency and possibly reputational damage if 
service is affected. 


We acknowledge the need for up to date 
policy and procedure manuals and are 
continuously updating them. 
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Recommendation Rationale Management Response 


Reconciliations between the Council Tax 
and NNDR systems and VOA updates 
should be completed within 15 days. 


Audit found that, from a sample of 10 weeks for each:  


 Five reconciliations were performed more than 15 days after 
the issuing of the VOA report. 


Where the reconciliations are not undertaken in a timely manner, 
there is a risk that discrepancies go unnoticed and can become 
bigger without the Council knowing. This could also lead to 
inaccurate records being kept. 


We will continue to aim for reconciliations to 
be performed within 14 days. 
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Housing Benefits Substantial 
Assurance 


 


  


Scope 


The audit covered the following areas:  


 Policies and procedures, including adherence to legislation, financial 
regulations and local policy; 


 Post opening procedures; 


 Segregation of duties, to include conflicts of interest; 


 Compliance with the current scheme of operation; 


 Timeliness and accuracy of assessments, amendments, back dated 
claims, payments and cancellations; 


 Management of overpayments and recovery; 


 


 Reliability of records (paper and electronic) and protection against loss 
and unauthorised access; 


 Accuracy and timeliness of performance monitoring; 


 Reconciliations; 


 Complaints; and 


 Link between single person discounts on council tax bills and benefit 
claims 


 


Two priority 3 recommendations were raised 


 


Priority 3  All sections of the Benefits write off report submitted for authorisation should be completed by the Benefits Team in order to support decision 
making and for retaining a complete record. 


Unreconciled balances between the bank statement and the Council’s financial management system in respect of housing benefits should be 
timely investigated and corrected by the Finance Team.  A management decision should be made to resolve the long outstanding suspense 
balance on the bank reconciliation. 
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Appendix III - Statement of Responsibility 


We take responsibility to North Devon District Council for this report which is prepared on the basis of the limitations set out below.  


The responsibility for designing and maintaining a sound system of internal control and the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities rests with 
management, with internal audit providing a service to management to enable them to achieve this objective. Specifically, we assess the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the system of internal control arrangements implemented by management and perform sample testing on those controls in the period under 
review with a view to providing an opinion on the extent to which risks in this area are managed.  


We plan our work in order to ensure that we have a reasonable expectation of detecting significant control weaknesses. However, our procedures alone 
should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses in internal controls, nor relied upon to identify any circumstances of fraud or irregularity. 
Even sound systems of internal control can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance and may not be proof against collusive fraud.  


The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our work and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement 
of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. Recommendations for improvements should be assessed by you for their full impact 
before they are implemented. The performance of our work is not and should not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application 
of sound management practices.  


This report is confidential and must not be disclosed to any third party or reproduced in whole or in part without our prior written consent. To the fullest extent 
permitted by law Mazars LLP accepts no responsibility and disclaims all liability to any third party who purports to use or rely for any reason whatsoever on 
the Report, its contents, conclusions, any extract, reinterpretation amendment and/or modification by any third party is entirely at their own risk.  
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